
 St. Martin-in-the-Fields Vestry Agenda May 21, 2023 
 
 

____The Rev Alan Bentrup, Rector 
____Bob Bess Senior Warden (25) 
____Rick Schultz, Jr Warden (25) 
____Dick Seeber, Jr Warden (26) 
____ DJ Mitchell, Treasurer (25) 
 

____Amanda Alvarez (24) 
____ Mary Anderson (24) 
____ Mary Beth Butler (26) 
____ Jen Duncan (25) 
____ Bryan Hedrick (26) 
 

____ Liz Jordan (26) 
____ Melissa Kurkul (24) 
____ Becky Snell-Bolerjack (24) 
__X_ Glenda Morehead, Clerk 
____ Gary Wilkinson, Finance 
         Chair  

1. Opening Prayer – Rector 
 
2. Consideration of Minutes for April 23, 2023 

 
3. Finance Committee Report – Gary Wilkinson 

a Approval of Treasurer’s Report 
 
4. Master Plan Update DJ Mitchell  

a  HVAC Work 
 

5. Junior Wardens’ Reports 
a. Playground discussion 
 

6. Senior Warden Report 
 

7. Rector’s Reports 
 a   Update on Curate 

 
8. Announcements 

a ____________________ 
b ____________________ 
c ____________________ 

 
9. Closing Prayer – The Rev Alan Bentrup 
 
10. Adjournment 

 
 
 
NEXT REGULAR VESTRY MEETING JUNE 18, 2023 12:00 PM WEST PARISH HALL. 



ST. MARTIN-IN-THE-FIELDS VESTRY MEETING 
April 23, 2023 

 

Present: Alan Bentrup – Rector, Bob Bess – Senior Warden, Rick Schultz – Jr. Warden, Dick 
Seeber – Jr. Warden, DJ Mitchell – Treasurer, Amanda Alvarez, Mary Anderson, Mary Beth 
Butler, Jen Duncan, Bryan Hedrick, Liz Jordan, Melissa Kurkul (via Zoom), Becky Snell-
Bolerjack 

Also Present: Gary Wilkinson, Finance Committee Chair 

Not Present: Glenda Morehead, Clerk 

A regular meeting of the Vestry of St. Martin-in-the-Fields Episcopal Church was held Sunday, 
April 23, 2023, in the West Parish Hall. The meeting opened with prayer by the Rector at 12:02 
PM. 

Eagle Scout Proposal 
Mr. Ethan Holland presented a proposal for his Eagle Scout project. Holland’s written and oral 
presentation detailed his plans for cleaning and repainting the surface of the Labyrinth and 
adding plantings to its border. His booklet is attached and made a part of these minutes. DJ 
Mitchell moved the vestry approve Holland’s project. Liz Jordan seconded the motion, and the 
motion carried  
 
Consideration of Minutes 
Dick Seeber moved the Vestry approve the minutes of the March 26 meeting. Rick Schultz 
seconded the motion, and the motion carried.  
 
Finance Committee Report & Treasurer’s Report 
Finance Committee Report: Gary Wilkinson presented the report, indicating that the parish is 
currently in a favorable position.  
Interment Costs Discussion  about the costs for interment in the Memorial Garden was tabled 
until a later date.  
Outside Audit: Wilkinson repeated that the parish audit will begin after the tax season is over. 
Treasurer’s Report Accepted: DJ Mitchell moved the Treasurer’s report be accepted, Becky 
Snell seconded the motion, and the motion carried. 
 
Jr. Wardens’ Report 
Grubby Sunday: Dick Seeber thanked all who worked on Grubby Sunday.  
Mower: St. Martin's owns a large industrial lawn mower which remains unused since the 
agreement with Fever United to mow the property for 10 years. Options include selling it with 
proceeds to go the General Fund, or offering it to Fever. Dick Seeber will contact Fever about 
the matter.  
Green Team Reactivation: Rex Angle and Chris Mullaney are willing to reorganize a Green 
Team to handle regular maintenance of shrubs and plantings. Bob Bess will contact them. 
Playground/GaGa Ball Area: These areas have not been kept up and need to be weeded and 
re-evaluated. Vestry agreed that multiple fences in the playground are not needed.  
 
Master Plan Update 
DJ Mitchell presented the document “Thoughts on Next Steps in Building Renovation” which is 
attached to and made a part of these minutes. The proposal includes HVAC design and Parish 



Hall improvements and design drawings for church to 30% to ensure best stewardship of 
resources. Bob Bess moved that Mitchell be authorized to proceed as described with VLK 
Architects. Dick Seeber seconded the motion, and the motion carried.  
 
Sr. Warden Report 
Bob Bess thanked participants in Grubby Sunday, the DeClerk funeral, and Easter celebrations. 
He stated better communication with the cleaning staff of expectations during high usage 
periods is needed. He asked that when Vestry members see an area that needs further 
attention by the cleaning staff they send a photo and description to the Junior Wardens. A new 
handheld mike is needed and will cost approximately $1,000.  
 
Rector’s Report 
Vestry Retreat Follow Up: Rector Alan Bentrup thanked members for attending the Retreat. 
Curate Update: Bentrup said that he is waiting to receive more information from the Diocese. 
Seminarian: Tony Kroll, a seminarian from Bexley-Seabury, Chicago, will be assigned to a field 
education course at St. Martin’s for one to two years starting in September.  
Bishops’ Visits: On May 28 St. Martin's summer schedule begins – one service at 9:15 AM. On 
that day Bishop Suffragan Kai Ryan will make an official visit to baptize, confirm, receive, and 
accept reaffirmations. One of those she will baptize is her great-niece. She will meet with the 
Vestry briefly after the service. Bishop Marianne Budde, Diocese of Washington, DC will also be 
with us that day and will confirm her niece. 
Special Gift: Bob Garrity has given a gift of $25,000 to the church, with the allocation to be at 
the Rector’s discretion. Bentrup announced that he plans to allocate $20,000 to the emergency 
fund, $1,000 to the Eagle Scout Projects Fund, $2,000 to his discretionary fund, and $2,000 to 
cover the cost of interment of Jordan DeClerk. The Vestry endorsed the Rector’s plan and 
expressed St. Martin's gratitude to Garrity for his gift.  
 
Dick Seeber moved the meeting be adjourned. DJ Mitchell seconded the motion and the motion 
carried. The meeting closed with prayer by the Rev. Alan Bentrup at 1:23 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Mary Beth Butler  
Clerk pro tem 























Keller, Texas 
May 20, 2023 
 

Implemen'ng the Church Master Plan 
 
Phase 1: Replace all air condi;oning units. 
Phase 2: Relocate the Parish Offices to provide space for future church improvements. 
Phase 3: Extend the Sanctuary east through the current office area. 
Phase 4: Connect the Sanctuary with the Parish Hall. 
Phase 5: Extend the Sanctuary west, reloca;ng in the process the Choir, AV control systems and 
modifying the west end of the building wai;ng area and the entrances to the Sanctuary. 
Phase 6: Update the interior of the Sanctuary. 
Phase 7: Construct the tower and covered walkway from the tower to the Parish Hall. 
 
An agreement has been signed with VLK Architects and a No;ce to Proceed was issued on May 18th to 
VLK Architects and their subcontractor, BHB, to proceed with Stage A of a four-stage final design effort to 
advance Phases 1 and 2 of the implementa;on of the Church’s Master Plan, described as follows: 

• State A: Review exis;ng as-built drawings and inspect both the Parish Halls and the Sanctuary to 
ensure that the subsequent stages of work do not run afoul of unforeseen condi;ons -- $11,970. 

• Stage B: Complete preliminary design and preliminary construc;on drawing associated with 
work to be done in the Parish Halls and the Sanctuary, ensuring in the process that the new air 
condi;oning system can be accommodated within the design objec;ves outlined in the Parish’s 
adopted Master Plan --$23,825. 

• Stage C: Prepare a Request for Proposals for all work to be undertaken, including the purchase 
and installa;on of a new air condi;oning system and the renova;on of the Parish Halls to 
accommodate the Parish Offices -- $2,500. 

• Stage D: Complete final design and final construc;on drawings for the purchase and installa;on 
of a new air condi;oning system and the renova;on of the Parish Halls to accommodate the 
Parish Offices – TBD. 

 
As in any building renova;on project, care must be taken to understand exis;ng condi;ons before 
commitments are made regarding future construc;on.  It is for this reason that the architect and its 
mechanical engineering subcontractor have not been given authority to proceed past Stage A un;l they 
have completed their assessment of our current buildings and their systems and can confirm that 
adequacy of their proposed scope of work, schedule of work, and budget. 
 
Stage B work will involve the preliminary design of parts of the church and Parish Halls that are in regular 
use.  Parishioners should an;cipate that such work will include significant and substan;ve input from 
those members of the Parish who work in these areas.  No;ce to par;cipate will be provided at the 
appropriate ;me.  Finally, funding is available to undertake all the work described in the VLK proposal of 
May 9th, as well as the replacement of the current air condi;oning system. 



Junior Warden’s Monthly Report 
April/May 2023 

   
 
Closed Items 
 

• Repaired Toilet in Parish Hall Women’s room 
 
• Repaired Toilet in Nursery area 

 
• Transferred ownership of mower (in shed) to Fever United 
 

• Organized shed to allow for additional storage of Good News Garden 
Materials (i.e., soil, mulch etc.)      

 
 

Pending Items: 
 

• Air Conditioning in small parish hall 
 

• Ceiling Tiles need replacement in Large and Small Parish Hall 



Senior Warden’s Report 
May 2023 

 
 
 

• Thanks to Rex Angle for getting our Green Team together.  Thanks to their hard work our 
playground area is looking better and the Memorial Garden was cleaned up.  There are still 
things to do but we are on a great path to keep up with our property. 

 
• Thank to our Junior Wardens for working with Constance  

Smith at Fever United to gift our large riding mower to them. 
 

• Thanks to everyone who helped with our Mother’s Day Breakfast, it was a great success. 
 

• I am pleased to report that several men met on a recent Saturday morning and discussed the 
development of a Men’s Fellowship group. Thanks to JB Clark for continuing to organize future 
meetings and communicate with everyone interested. 

 
• In order to continue in my effort to restore and improve our outdoor playground I want to bring 

our needs to the Building and Grounds committee. 
 



Rector’s Report – May 21, 2023
The Rev. Alan D. Bentrup, Rector

Things of note
● Bishop’s visitation May 28, 2023
● Informal vestry meeting with Bishop Ryan following the service
● Gavin Tomlin, Curate, begins July 1

○ Diaconal ordination in Houston, Saturday, June 24
○ Priestly ordination at St. Martin’s, likely in January

● Tony Kroll, Seminarian begins Sept 1

Upcoming Dates
May 21 Senior Sunday / DOK Installation / Vestry Meeting
May 28 Pentecost w/ Bishop’s Visitation (Moving to one service)
May 29-June 4 Alan vacation; the Rev. Stephanie Moncrief supplying
June 11 BBQ Brunch Potluck
June 12-16 VBS
June 18 VBS Sunday / Vestry Meeting
June 24 Gavin Tomlin’s ordination (Christ Church, Houston_)
July No Vestry Meeting
July 9 Summer Celebration (water slide, cookout, ice cream)
July 10-14 City Week at UGM
July 31-Aug 12 Alan vacation; supply TBD
Aug 13 Backpack Blessings
Aug 20 Vestry Meeting
Sept 10 Rally Sunday



Worship attendance

Date 8:00 10:30 EV Other Online Total 5wk Avg 52wk avg Visitors

4/2 37 98 1 21 157 148 130 5

4/9 41 178 61 84 364 187 134 20

4/16 25 145 1 23 194 197 135 8

4/23 22 94 15 131 196 132 3

4/30 33 100 1 21 155 200 133 7

5/7 24 119 1 14 158 200 134 3

5/14 25 127 1 30 183 164 135 6

Historical ASA
2012 - 215
2013 - 199
2014 - 178
2015 - 224

2016 - 239
2017 - 187
2018 - 157
2019 - 156

2020 - 60
2021 - 68
2022 - 114


